
Meeting Minutes 

State College Borough Design Review Board 

April 5, 2016 

  
The State College Borough Design Review Board (DRB) met on Tuesday, April 5, 2016 
in the State College Borough Municipal Building, 243 South Allen Street in Room 241. 
Chairman Rick Bryant called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. 

  
Members present  
 
Rick Bryant, Chairman; Justin Wheeler, Vice-Chairman; Richard Devon, and Bond 
Reinhardt.  
  
Others Present: 
 
Anne Messner, Planner/Zoning; Sarah Smith, Staff Assistant; Michael Haluga, Michael 
C. Haluga, Inc.; and Charles Tabb, Sweetland Engineering.   
Approval of Minutes  
 
Mr. Wheeler made a motion to approve the March 15, 2016 minutes as submitted and 
Mr.  Reinhardt seconded the motion. The vote was unanimously in favor.  
 
Chair Report  
 
The Chair had nothing to report. 

  
Public Hour  
 
No one in the audience wished to discuss items not on the agenda.  

 
Sign  

 
New Signs, 1311 South Atherton Street, Dunkin Donuts, CP2 Zoning District 
Signarama, Applicant   
 
Ms. Messner’s highlights included: 

 After some revisions to the initial plan, the current submission had been 
brought into compliance with the sign ordinance in both number of signs and 
in the square footage of signs.  

 There was one correction to the submission that the ground pole sign in the 
rear would be relocated to the back of the building as the sign ordinance does 
not permit there to be two ground sign poles on the lot.  

 The new Dunkin Donuts would be the only drive-thru for a food establishment 
in the Borough.  

 
 
 
 



Boards’ comments included: 

 Inquired if the awnings were fabric panels and if the colored awnings counted 
towards the sign total (Ms. Messner noted that the only items that counted 
towards signs were the ones with wording and/or graphics).  

 No other comments. The Board thought the proposal looked good.  
 
Ms. Messner noted that she would forward the Board’s comments to the Applicant.  
 
Land Development Plan 
 
Preliminary Plan for proposed Improvements, Additions and Renovations to 243 South 
Pugh Street, Project Design by Michael C. Haluga, Inc., Registered Architect,  Dean 
and Linda Spanos, Owners. 
 
Mr. Haluga’s and Mr. Tabb’s highlights included: 

 The proposal was to expand the apartment building use for the property. 

 There would be an extension of the basement unit.  

 The renovations would include conversions to the property to bring it up to 
Code for ADA accessibility.  
o Convert one existing first floor unit for ADA accessibility. 
o Convert a laundry room for ADA accessibility. 
o Convert a bathroom for ADA accessibility.  
o Ensure ADA accessibility from the parking lot. 
o The extension in the front yard will be ADA accessible. 

 The current porch would be partially maintained and used to create a 
staircase to the upper floors. 

 The existing structure was brick case with mansard roof, bow, and dormers.  
o Brick case on the front would be mostly removed with the renovation. 
o The addition would mimic the style of architecture with the mansard roof, 

bow, and dormers. 
o The addition would not have brick because it would be impossible to 

match the brick and they did not want the addition to look like a mistake. 
They would try to complement the existing brick by using clapboard siding 
on the addition.  

 The floor lines would not line up because of the basement apartment.  

 The foundation walls would be concealed with a stone veneer. 

 There were 15 parking stalls existing at the site. The proposal would require 1 
stall to be removed for an ADA accessibility aisle. The regulations for this type 
of structure would require 9 parking stalls so parking would be in compliance.  

 The stormwater was still being reviewed, but it was noted that it would likely 
be put underground due to the site limitations.  

 The proposed utilities would be connected to the existing utilities.  
 
Boards’ comments included: 

 Inquired if there would be a problem with permeability as there was not much 
grass and inquired if there was any plan to beautify the area. (Mr. Haluga 



noted that the parking lot is paved and the grass area is a very small area. 
The parking lot might be re-striped, but there were no plans for beautification.)  

 Inquired if there had been problems with people parking in the lot who didn’t 
live at the property. (Mr. Haluga responded that was a problem for all of the 
landlords in town with parking lots.)  

 Had some discussion about a neighboring property which was owned by the 
same owner. There was previously a similar project done on the neighboring 
property.  

o The Board thought the previous project on the other property was 
initially declined by Planning Commission. (Mr. Haluga explained that it 
was initially, but all of the concerns were addressed and the project 
went through.) 

o Inquired about combining the two neighboring lots to be able to 
construct a larger project like Nicholas Towers had done. (Mr. Haluga 
explained that this was not a possibility due to some difficulties with 
another neighboring lot being owned by another party.) 

 Inquired if the northern setback was legal as the property line was very close 
to the building. (Ms. Messner noted that the property was in a commercial 
district so the building could be up to the property line. Mr. Haluga noted that 
they would ensure that all of the utilities would be kept within the property 
boundaries.) 

 Inquired about permeability at the property. (Ms. Messner noted that it was 
acceptable per the ordinance.)  

 Inquired if the Arborist had any comments on the property. (Ms. Messner 
noted there was no tree ordinance regarding private trees so the Arborist had 
no notes.) 

 Inquired about landscaping at the property. There was some discussion 
regarding the landscaping that was done on the owner’s previous project at 
257 South Pugh Street. The Board noted that the underlayment did not allow 
water to permeate the soil which caused the plants to die, the stone work at 
the property had often been found on Foster Avenue and it collected garbage. 
The Board member stated that the work on the building at 257 South Pugh 
Street had been well done, but that the landscaping had made the whole 
project look poorly. (Mr. Haluga stated that Sweetland Engineering would be 
working on that part of the project and they would be attempting to improve 
the property in that area as well.) 

 Inquired about the square footage of the project as it was not noted on the 
plan (Mr. Tabb stated that it would be on the final plan when that was 
submitted.)  

 There was some discussion regarding the area near the sidewalk on Pugh 
Street as there seemed to be a big drop in elevation between the end of the 
property and the sidewalk itself. Inquired if there would be a retaining wall for 
that area. (There would be fifteen feet between curb and the face of building. 
The project would remove the existing private sidewalk and install one small 
sidewalk to provide access to the basement apartment, and one longer 
sidewalk that would extend from the Pugh Street sidewalk to the side porch 
which would provide access to the rest of the apartments. There would be a 
retaining wall to elevate the grade on Pugh Street. There would be window 



wells in the front of the building into the basement to allow for light and 
ventilation. The retaining wall would end at the corner and it would be 
constructed of split face block which would be durable and maintainable.) 

 Inquired if the basement would be ADA accessible. (Mr. Haluga noted that it 
could be, but it was not designed to be. He then explained that only one unit 
would need to be ADA accessible and they had designed the units for the 
accessible unit to be on the ground floor.) 

 Inquired as to how many total units would be at the property. (Mr. Tabb stated 
that there would be twenty-one units total with eleven in the existing structure 
and ten being added with the project.) 

 Inquired if there would be an additional fire escape added to the property. (Mr. 
Haluga noted that the whole building would have a sprinkler system so the 
Code only required there to be one fire escape which was already in place on 
the existing structure.) 

 Inquired if there would be any improvements to the Orchard Alley side of the 
property. (Mr. Haluga explained that they would only be keeping it clean and 
mowed as that area was difficult to manage with the amount of tenant activity 
there.) 

 Inquired about the exhaust fan. (Mr. Haluga stated that would be removed.)  

 Inquired about the colors for the new clapboard section. (Mr. Haluga 
explained that they did not want to match the old because it would be 
impossible to truly match and it would make the addition look like a mistake. 
The project would be attempting to complement the existing building without 
trying to match. He is also recommending that all of the existing shingles be 
replaced when the new roof was built as they needed to be replaced soon 
and it would help to bring the whole building together. Finally, he explained 
the brick section would be left as it was since painting or pressure washing it 
could destroy the brick.)  
 

Ms. Messner stated she would summarize the Board’s comments to be a part of the 
plan review letter to the applicant. 
 
Official Reports and Correspondence 

 
Borough Council (BC): Ms. Messner reported that Borough Council had reviewed the 
Community Development Block Grant and approved it. She stated that a joint meeting 
with BC and Planning Commission would occur on May 4 to discuss the housing needs 
of graduate students including the previous work completed by Ms. Sarah Klinetob and 
some additional information that staff has been gathering.  
 
Planning Commission (PC): Ms. Messner stated that the PC would be meeting on April 
6, 2016 to review the Land Development Plan for 243 South Pugh Street.  
 
Ms. Messner noted that there was no Land Development Plan for the April 19th Design 
Review Board meeting so it may be cancelled. Chairman Bryant inquired if there was 
any update on the Holtzman Award. Ms. Messner stated that she had forwarded the 
Board’s recommendation to the Borough Manager, but she had not yet heard any 
response.  



Finally, Ms. Messner stated that the draft of the Master Tree Plan had been made 
available online. She requested that the Board review the Plan and make any 
comments or suggestions which she would forward to the staff working on the Plan. Ms. 
Smith would forward the electronic link to the Board via e-mail. Mr. Devon suggested 
that the Borough create a plan regarding urban wildlife.  
 
Adjournment 
 
With no further business to discuss, this meeting was adjourned at 10:44 a.m. by a 
motion from Mr. Reinhardt. 
 
Respectfully submitted by, 
Sarah E. Smith, Staff Assistant 


